COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE- FEBRUARY 19, 2008

ASSUMPTION- MACKENZIE GLEN SUBDIVISION PHASE 5
19T-89016/65M-3338
HYDRO SWITCH GEAR RELOCATION

Recommendation

The Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works recommends:

1. That this report regarding the existing hydro switch gear situated on the property at 500
Cunningham Drive be received for information purposes; and

2. That the necessary by-law be passed assuming the municipal services that are set out in
the subdivision agreement for Plan 65M-3338, and that the municipal services letter of
credit be reduced to $55,000.

Economic Impact

There are no economic impacts associated with this report.

Communications Plan

This report was prepared in consultation with the engineering staff from PowerStream, the
Developer of the subdivision and the homeowner.

Purpose

This additional information report is intended to address the comments raised by Council with
respect to the existing hydro switch gear situated in the front yard at 500 Cunningham Drive in
Maple.

Background - Analysis and Options

Council, at its meeting of January 28, 2008, adopted the following:

“That staff provide a report to the Committee of the Whole meeting of February 19,
2008 on the relocation of the hydro switchgear box on Cunningham Drive (Lot #33 of
Plan 65M-3879), west of Robertson Close.”

The fifth phase of the Mackenzie Glen Subdivision, Plan 65M-3338 is located west of Keele
Street and north of McNaughton Road in Maple as shown on Attachment No. 1. This phase of
the subdivision includes about 500 residential lots, a park and a school block. The municipal
services in this phase of the Mackenzie Glen Subdivision were installed in the summer of 1998.
A hydro switch gear was installed within an easement at the south-east corner of the proposed
school block as part of the electrical distribution system in this subdivision as illustrated on
Attachment No. 1. According to PowerStream, this particular switch gear is a key component of
the overall hydro supply and distribution system that services about 600 customers in the
surrounding neighbourhood.

At some point after the registration of Plan 65M-3338, the School Board decided not to exercise
their option on the school block so the lands reverted back to the developer for residential use.
The developer subsequently submitted Draft Plan of Subdivision 19T-04V07 on the former school
block which proposed 33 residential lots. Through the draft plan review process, PowerStream
and City staff identified that the existing hydro switch gear fell within the front yard of a proposed



residential lot. In keeping with usual practice, the Developer was requested to explore the
feasibility of relocating this hydro switch gear to a more suitable location in the draft plan. After
investigating a number of options, PowerStream determined that it was not practically feasible to
relocate the switchgear. Accordingly, in an effort to mitigate the impact of the switchgear on the
lot, the Developer prepared a demonstration plan showing how the switch gear could be
maintained in the front yard of the lot and not impact the siting of the house and associated
driveway. Through the review and approval of this plan, the frontage of the subject lot was
widened to approximately 16.0 metres to accommodate the switch gear, which is about 4.0
metres wider than most other lots in the subdivision. Based on the adjustments to the lot width,
the Mackenzie Glen Draft Plan of Subdivision 19T-04V07 was draft approved and ultimately
registered as Plan 65M-3879. Consequently, the hydro switch gear is now located within an
easement in favour of PowerStream on Lot 33 in Plan 65M-3879. Through the engineering
stage of this development, the switch gear was detailed on the civil, landscaping and utility
location plans, which were eventually approved by both PowerStream and the City.

The Developer has advised the City that the current homeowner of 500 Cunningham Drive had
formally acknowledged and accepted that the hydro switch gear was located in the front yard of
the lot prior to taking title of the property. Notwithstanding this, it is our understanding that the
homeowner has recently contacted PowerStream to inquire about the feasibility of relocating the
switch gear. On March 13, 2007, PowerStream provided a written response to the homeowner
which concluded that based on a review of the existing electrical distribution system there is no
viable option available to relocate the switch gear. A copy of this correspondence is included as
Attachment No. 2 to this report.

In preparing this report, staff met with PowerStream to gain a better understanding of the
potential options that are available to relocate the subject hydro switch gear. Based on these
discussions, the following four options were explored:

Option 1 - Relocate the existing hydro switch gear to the north-west corner of the St. Joan of Arc
School site. This option would involve extending high voltage cable from the existing switch gear
site easterly along Cunningham Drive to the school, removal and relocation of the switch gear,
and full restoration.  The installation of the cable would require trenching along the road
boulevard, and the crossing of about ten existing driveways and St. Joan of Arc Avenue. Based
on very preliminary estimates, the electrical work associated with this option is expected to cost
between $125,000 and $150,000 plus the cost of acquiring an easement over the school block.

Option 2 - Relocate the hydro switch gear to the center median within the cul-de-sac at the north
end of Leor Court. This option would involve extending high voltage cable westerly along
Cunningham Drive then north on Leor Court to the median. The installation of the cable would
require trenching along the road boulevard, and the crossing of about ten existing driveways and
Leor Court. Based on very preliminary estimates, the electrical work associated with this option is
expected to cost about $150,000. It is important to note that the relocation of the switch gear to
the median would require the removal of some existing landscaping to make room for the new
hydro switch gear. In addition, there are a number of existing underground utilities, municipal
services and two hydro transformers currently situated on the median which may need to be
moved to make sufficient room for the additional switch gear. Since this median is in full view of
about twelve existing residences on the cul-de-sac, it would be appropriate to provide additional
landscaping on the median to visually screen the switch gear.

Option 3 - Replacing the existing hydro switch gear within an underground vault. Although this is
the least disruptive option, the design and construction requirements involved with an
underground alternative is estimated to cost about $175,000. In addition, the proposed
underground vault would still be contained within the existing easement in the front yard and
would require a large metal grate at ground level.



Option 4 — Removal of the hydro switch gear from the distribution system. This switch gear
services approximately 300 customers and is an integral part of a much larger distribution
system, providing backup servicing to an additional 300 customers. PowerStream staff advise
that given the existing layout and design of the electrical distribution system, the removal of this
hydro switch gear is not a technically feasible option.

After thorough considering these options, PowerStream once again concluded that there isn’t a
practical and economical option available to relocate the existing switch gear situated on the
property at 500 Cunningham Drive in Maple.

Development Review Process Refinements

In new development, it is the practice to locate large hydro vaults and switch gears in areas that
will not directly impact residential lots such as in school blocks, parks, storm water management
facilities, landscaped medians, single loaded roads and if necessary, at the rear flankage of a lot.
In infill developments, the situation can arise where an existing hydro vaults or switch gears
conflicts with a proposed residential lot. In this case, the developer is requested to relocate the
hydro facility to a more appropriate location if it is practically and economically feasible to do so.

Through recent discussions, City and PowerStream staff has established the following protocol
for new residential development applications in order to better address the situation where
existing hydro infrastructure has the potential to conflict or negatively impact with the
development or redevelopment of a site. During the development review process, PowerStream
will;

€) advise the City if a proposed or existing hydro switch gear or vault is located within a
proposed residential subdivision or individual lot;

(b) request the developer to relocate, entirely at the developer's cost, any existing or
proposed hydro switch gear or vault that negatively impacts a proposed residential lot to
an appropriate site within or in proximity to the development, if it is determined that it is
practically and economically feasible to do so, to the satisfaction of the City and
PowerStream;

(c) If in the event there is no reasonable alternative other than to locate a hydro switch gear
or vault on or in proximity to a residential lot, then PowerStream will request that the City
include a condition in the subdivision agreement requiring that the appropriate warning
statements be included in all purchase and sale agreements for the effected lot advising
perspective purchasers of the existence of the hydro facility; and

(d) The following requirement will be imposed as a standard condition of development
approval for new residential developments:

“Prior to final approval of the Plan, the Owner shall make the necessary arrangements for
the relocation of any existing utilities required by the development of the subject lands to
be undertaken at the Owner’s expense to the satisfaction of the City. The Owner shall
agree in the subdivision agreement to incorporate in the design and layout of the units, all
possible methods for the screening of utility boxes, transformers, and/or hydro meters to
the satisfaction of the City.”



Relationship to Vaughan Vision 2020

This report is in keeping with the strategic goals and objectives of Vaughan Vision 2020, in
particular the initiatives relating to the effective management of growth and the delivery of high
quality of services to all City stakeholders.

Regional Implications

There are no Regional implications associated with this report.
Conclusion

After thorough consideration of the possible options, PowerStream has concluded that it is neither
practically nor economically feasible to relocate the existing hydro switch gear situated in the front
yard at 500 Cunningham Drive in Maple. City and PowerStream staff has implemented a
number of refinements to the development review process in order to better address the location
of hydro switch gears and/or vaults in new residential developments. Accordingly, staff is
recommending that the municipal services in Phase 5 of the Mackenzie Glen Subdivision, Plan
65M-3338 be assumed and the municipal services letter of credit be reduced to $55,000 as set
out in Item 23, Report No. 1, of the Committee of the Whole meeting on January 21, 2008, a copy
of which is attached to this report as Attachment No.3.

Attachments

1. Location Map

2. PowerStream letter dated March 13, 2007

3. Item 23, Report No.1 of the Committee of Whole Meeting — January 21, 2008
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Respectfully submitted,

Bill Robinson, P. Eng. Andrew Pearce, C.E.T.
Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works Director of Development/
Transportation Engineering


















